


http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


















governmental proprietary

¶ Governmental funds:

modified accrual

short-term 
view

activities
funds

¶ Proprietary funds

THE CITY AS A WHOLE 











Long-Term Debt  

¶ 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARôS BUDGET

Table 4
City of Colfax, Outstanding Debt

(in Thousands)

   Total Long-term Debt





















































































550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 

Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 

Government Auditing Standards

deficiency in internal control 

material weakness

significant deficiency





















City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes January 10, 2018 
 

6A.      City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, January 10, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 CLOSED SESSION 

1A. Call to Order 
Mayor Stockwin called the closed session to order at 6:32PM. 

1B. Roll Call 
Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 

1C. Public Comment on Closed Session 
There was no public comment on the closed session items. 

1D. Closed Session 
Conference with Legal Counsel ɀ Anticipated Litigation. Significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to Government Code §54956.9(d)(2): one potential case. 

 

Closed Session adjourned at 7:02PM. 
 

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A. Call to Order 
Mayor Stockwin called the open session to order at 7:05PM. 

2B. Report from Closed Session 
City Attorney Cabral stated there was nothing to report from Closed Session. 

2C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Larry Hillberg, 255 Jay Street, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2D. Roll Call 
Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved the agenda order. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

3 PRESENTATION 

3A. Colfax High School Every 15 Minutes Program 
Elle Lippold, Vice President Colfax High School Associated Student Body 

Ms. Lippold gave a presentation introducing the Every 15 Minutes program which demonstrates 
to students the impact of driving under the influence with a simulated fatal car accident and the 
legal/emotional results.  Two assemblies will be held at the High School on February 6 and 7, 
2018.  The California Highway Patrol provides a grant for much of the event, but not all of the 
expenses.  Ms. Lippold is incorporating the Every 15 Minutes Program into a week she is 
coordinating as part of her Girl Scout Gold Award to encourage students not to drive distracted 
or impaired.  Ms. Lippold asked if the public or Council would consider donating to the project. 
Council and the public asked several questions to clarify how the funds would be spent and 
where to donate. 





City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes January 10, 2018 
 

5 PUBLIC COMMENT 

Otis Wallen, Colfax area resident 
¶ Mr. Wallen handed out copies of the recent Placer County resolution regarding the 

Auburn State Recreation area.  He stated Council should read the resolution in light of 
the effect it may have on commerce in Colfax for Bear River recreational use. 

Jim Bowers, 205 Pine Street 
¶ Mr. Bowers handed out a concept sketch of a Ȱchoo-chooȱ clock.  As he mentioned at 
ÔÈÅ ÌÁÓÔ ÍÅÅÔÉÎÇȟ ÈÅ ÉÓ ÐÒÏÐÏÓÉÎÇ ÔÈÅ #ÉÔÙ ÂÕÉÌÄ ÔÈÅ ×ÏÒÌÄȭÓ Ȱsomethingȱ to draw 
tourists into downtown Colfax.  Specifically the ×ÏÒÌÄȭÓ largest clock with a model 
train to mark each hour could really benefit the community.  He would like to make a 
more formal presentation at a future meeting.  

Foxey McCleary, 127 Saunders Lane 
¶ Ms. McCleary reminded everyone to support the VFW by joining them at their 2nd 

Sunday breakfast. 
¶ She also asked everyone to save the date of April 28, 2018 for the 5th annual Chocolate, 

Wine and Art Indulgence. 
Larry Hillberg, 205 Jay Street 
¶ Mr. Hillberg spoke in support of Mr. Bowers who is the current record holder for the 
×ÏÒÌÄȭÓ ÌÁÒÇÅÓÔ ÃÌÏÃË.  

 

6 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 

6A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ɀ All Councilmembers 
Councilmember Harvey 
¶ Councilmember Harvey had nothing to report. 

Councilmember Douglass 
¶ Councilmember Douglass attended the Winterfest follow-up meeting and the 

Sierra Vista Community Center Board meeting. 
¶ He represented the City on the SACOG board, the Pioneer Energy board, the County 

Economic Development board and attended a Waste Management Seminar. 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
¶ Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza has found a potential location for a Youth Enrichment 

Center. 
¶ She continues to work with seniors in the area. 

Councilmember Stockwin 
¶ Councilmember Stockwin attended the 2nd Wednesday Coffee with Supervisor 

Montgomery.  Fire insurance costs were the main topic of conversation. 
¶ He reported the area has 18.9 inches of rain this season which is approximately 

half of the rainfall compared to this time last year. 
 

6B. City Operations ɀ City Staff 
City Manager Heathcock 
¶ City Manager Heathcock reported that several capital improvement projects are in 

the planning process:  the roundabout on S. Auburn, Culver Street paving, Rising 
Sun paving, and ADA improvements in front of City Hall. 

¶ The Wastewater Treatment Plant permit (NPDES) renewal is in process and will 
most like allow reduced monitoring requirements. 

¶ Street lights in the Depot area have been repaired with LED upgrades. 

















































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

FOR THE JANUARY 24, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

DATE: January 16, 2018 

SUBJECT: South Auburn Street Hotel Development Proposal CEQA Document Preparation ς 
Contract for Professional Services  

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  $33,469 
FROM FUND:  Developer 
Funded 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 05-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
agreement with The RCH Group for preparation for the S. Auburn/Whitcomb Hotel CEQA Document in 
an amount not to exceed $33,469. 

 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
The City recently received a planning application for the development of a 3-story 69 room hotel to be located near 
the corner of Whitcomb Avenue and South Auburn Street.  As required by California Environmental Quality Agency 
(CEQA), an Initial Study must be prepared to determine the level of environmental impacts as a result of the 
proposed project.  Because the City does not have the expertise in-house, it is appropriate to hire an outside 
consultant to prepare the document.  Although the contract will be between the City and The RCH Group, the 
developer will be responsible for funding the entire cost of the Study. 
 
The RCH Group has submitted the attached scope of work to complete the necessary work (Exhibit A) in compliance 
with CEQA requirements. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The attached scope of work outlines the specific tasks that will be undertaken:  the kickoff meeting with staff and the 
developer, preparation of the administrative draft Initial Study, circulation of the Study to appropriate public 
agencies, and preparation of the final memo and environmental document (Negative Declaration or Mitigated 
Negative Declaration) for final review as part of the development project. 
 
The actual development proposal will be reviewed separately at a later date.  This report addresses only the contract 
for preparation of the required CEQA analysis. 
 
FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
The total cost for the report is anticipated to be $33,469 and is expected to take approximately five months to 
prepare.  Funding for the project will be paid by the developer. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1.  Resolution 05-2018 
2.  Contract with The RCH Group including Proposal 



























[1] 
R&R Partners – Colfax Hotel Project 

R&R Partners – Colfax Hotel 
Proposal for Consulting Services & 
CEQA Document Preparation 

1 PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

R&R Partners (the applicant) proposes to develop on three undeveloped parcels totaling approximately 

2.6 acres at the corner of South Auburn Street and Whitcomb Avenue in the City of Colfax (Placer 

County APN 100π230π022, π023 & π024). The project site is bordered by Colfax Dental Center, a private 

residence and vacant land to the west, Dollar General to the south, Whitcomb Avenue to the north and 

South Auburn Street to the east. The proposed project includes the development of a threeπstory hotel 

with 69 rooms. The construction and operation of the proposed hotel is the “project,” as defined by the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The City of Colfax is the CEQA Lead Agency. 

2 PROJECT APPROACH 

2.1 GENERAL APPROACH 
RCH’s Managing Principal of Environmental Services, Paul Miller, will manage the proposed project. Paul 

is an environmental professional with more than 33 years of experience in providing services and 

products to government agencies and private sector corporations. With a broad range of environmental 

skills, he has applied his background since 1986 to CEQA and NEPA and has been integral in the 

preparation of over 500 CEQA/NEPA environmental documents, including project manager for more 

than 18 major EIRs. Paul managed the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for Sierra 

Oaks Estates and Village Oaks, a 34πlot singleπfamily residential neighborhood and a 76πunit multiπfamily 

residential community on a 35πacre site near the southwest corner of Iowa Hill Road and Grand View 

Way in the City of Colfax. RCH prepared the IS/MND inπhouse and the project was approved in 

December 14, 2016.  

RCH has significant project experience in the Colfax and Placer County area and has good working 

relationships with responsible agencies and other jurisdictions applicable to the proposed project such 

as the City of Colfax Planning Department, Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD) and 

Placer County Water Authority (PCWA).  

RCH will use its experience with CEQA and projects in Colfax and the Placer County area in preparing a 

CEQA document for the project. An Initial Study will first be prepared for the proposed project to 

provide the City of Colfax with the information to use as the basis for deciding whether to prepare an 

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) or MND. The initial study will enable the R&R Partners and the City of 

Colfax to mitigate adverse impacts as a result of the proposed project before an EIR is prepared, 

enabling the proposed project to qualify for a MND. The Initial Study will use the Appendix G Checklist of 

the CEQA Guidelines and will contain responses for each checklist item (16 general categories of 

environmental impacts) and provide explanations for items with potential environmental impacts that 















[8] 
R&R Partners – Colfax Hotel Project 

 

Table 1.  Cost Estimate RCH Group

Labor Effort Direct Costs

Subconsultant    Other Direct Costs

RCH Staff:

P
au

l M
ill

er

M
ik

e 
R

at
te

D
an

 J
on

es

E
rin

 R
ed

dy

G
ra

ph
ic

s 
an

d 
A

dm
in

RCH 
HOURS

RCH  
LABOR  
COSTS K

D
 A

nd
er

so
n 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s

 T
ra

ve
l &

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 P
rin

tin
g 

&
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 O
th

er
 d

ire
ct

 c
os

t

Total 
Direct 
Costs 
plus

RCH 
TOTAL 
COSTS

  Employee category bill rate:  ($/hr) $160 $145 $95 $85 $90 10%

TASKS: (Hours per person per task)

1. Project Kick-Off Meeting 4 4 8 $1,020 $0 $1,020

2. Administrative IS Preparation 16 4 60 35 4 119 $12,175 $8,205 $190 $50 $9,290 $21,465

3. Draft IS Preparation 8 2 16 8 34 $3,770 $0 $3,770

4. Circulate CEQA Document 2 6 8 $890 $50 $55 $945

5. Response to Public Comments on CEQA Document 4 12 16 $1,780 $0 $1,780

6. Public Hearing (1) 6 6 12 $1,530 $95 $50 $160 $1,690

7. Project Management 8 16 24 $2,800 $0 $2,800

TOTAL EFFORT (Hours) 48 6 120 43 4 221

TOTAL COSTS ($) $7,680 $870 $11,400 $3,655 $360 $23,965 $8,205 $285 $150 $0 $9,504 $33,469

R&R Partners -- Colfax Hotel Project    
CEQA Environmental Review





 

Transportation Engineers 
 

 

3853 Taylor Road, Suite G • Loomis, CA 95650 • (916) 660-1555 • FAX (916)660-1535 

December 18, 2017 

 

 

 

Mr. Dan Jones, Associate 

RCH GROUP 

11060 White Rock Road, Suite 150-A 

Rancho Cordova, CA  95670 

 

 

RE: PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE TRAFFIC ENGINEERING CONSULTANT SERVICES FOR 

69 ROOM HOTEL, COLFAX, CA. 

 

 

Dear Mr. Jones: 

 

Thank you for considering our firm for services relating to the 69 Room Hotel project proposed in 

Colfax.  As we understand, the project would be located on a site along S. Auburn Street in southern 

Colfax.  The project would take access to S. Auburn Street in the area immediately south of the 

Whitcomb Avenue intersection below the eastbound I-80 ramps intersection adjoining the new Dollar 

General Store.   

 

Key Issues. Our firm is familiar with traffic issues in Colfax through our analysis for retail projects at the 

S. Auburn Street / WB I-80 ramps intersection.  That analysis was the basis for design of a planned 

roundabout intersection that should relieve peak period congestion.  Previous studies have noted morning 

traffic problems in downtown Colfax further north.  A traffic impact fee program is in place which 

addresses these areas. 

  

Scope of Work.  This letter is KD Anderson & Associates (KDA) proposal to provide traffic engineering 

consultant services as they relate to the work needed to prepare a traffic impact analysis for the project. 

 

Task 1 ï Coordination with City of Colfax Staff.  KDA will review our work program with City staff 

to finalize our scope of work.  Any changes to the Scope of Work that are requested by the City will be 

reported to the client, and applicable contract amendments will be processed if appropriate and so directed 

by the client.  

 

Task 2 ï Data Collection.  We will combine field review with available traffic volume data and new 

traffic counts to describe study area roads and existing traffic operating conditions at intersections in this 

area of Colfax.  A field review will be conducted to reacquaint us with the study area.  We will compile 

traffic volume information regarding weekday a.m. peak hour conditions when area schools are in session 

(7:00 to 9:00 a.m.) and weekday p.m. peak hour conditions (4:00 to 6:00 p.m.).  Based on the size of this 

project and its limited trip generation two (2) study intersections will be addressed: 

 

1. South Auburn Street / Westbound I-80 off-on ramps 

2. South Auburn Street / Whitcomb Avenue  

 

Our study budget assumes that new data will need to be gathered at each intersection.  

 

23 of 26









1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE JANUARY 24, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

PREPARED BY: Wes Heathcock City Manager 
DATE: January 17, 2018 

SUBJECT: Agreement for Commercial Cannabis Consulting and Management Services  
 

 N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $29,700 FROM FUND:  100 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 06-2018 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 
consultant services agreement with HdL Companies to provide subject matter expertise and technical 
support, develop a Commercial Cannabis Regulatory Ordinance, establish cost recovery fees, create a 
cannabis tax measure and conduct compliance & financial audits for the City of Colfax for a three year 
term with an option to renew for an additional two-years. 

 
SUMMARY:   

Council adopted Ordinance 534 providing regulation regarding cultivation of cannabis and commercial 
cannabis activities on October 25, 2017.  Ordinance 534 prohibits all commercial cannabis activities with a 
single exception for one medical marijuana dispensary that existed and had a valid business license as of 
November 27, 2009.  Staff issued a 120-day temporary business license pending State licensing and 
compliance with regulations as imposed by Council.  Council created an Ad Hoc Cannabis Subcommittee to 
discuss amending the Ordinance to allow commercial cannabis activity.  Council members Steve Harvey and 
Will Stockwin were selected to serve on the committee with City Manager Wes Heathcock.   
 
The committee has met several times since October of last year.  During their initial meeting, the 
committee agreed to consider issues related to regulating medical and adult use marijuana dispensaries, 
ƴƻǿ ǘŜǊƳŜŘ ά/ŀƴƴŀōƛǎ wŜǘŀƛƭŜǊǎέ, first.  Other commercial cannabis activities could be addressed at a 
future date if Council so chooses.  Subsequently, the committee met with representatives of HdL 
Companies to discuss how HdL could provide expertise in developing and managing the commercial 
cannabis activity in the City of Colfax.  The City already has a successful relationship with HdL to monitor 
sales tax.   
 
HdL Cannabis Management Program Services will guide the City though state level legislative changes and 
help make strategic decisions about commercial activities related to cannabis.  HdL has the expertise to 
help the City avoid legal pitfalls and practices that could lead to land use issues and other transparency 
problems.  HdL has experience with successfully guiding over 100 municipalities through the process of 
developing ordinances, sales tax initiatives, regulations, applications and permitting processes.  They also 
screen applicants, help to set permit fees and perform commercial cannabis code enforcement in 







http://www.hdlcompanies.com/
http://www.hdlcompanies.com/
mailto:dmcpherson@hdlcompanies.com
mailto:dmcpherson@hdlcompanies.com




mailto:anickerson@hdlcompanies.com
mailto:dmcpherson@hdlcompanies.com






























mailto:marke@unioncity.org
mailto:suzi.merriam@cityofwatsonville.org
mailto:jesse.mays@culvercity.org
mailto:dmata@cityofhanfordca.com








January 25, 2018 HdL for Cannabis Management Page 4 

 

written authorization from the City.  
 

C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury 
and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for 
each occurrence.  

 

D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 
shall be endorsed with the following provisions:  
1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be 

named as insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and 
defenses of claims arising from activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. 

2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured 
who is seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, 
except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability. 

3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance 
maintained by the City or its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of this insurance and shall 
not contribute with it. 

4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has 
been provided to the City. 

5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not 
affect coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, or agents.  
 

E. Professional Liability Coverage. If required by the City, Consultant shall also take out 
and maintain professional liability, errors and omissions insurance in an amount not 
less than $1 million.  The professional liability insurance policy shall be endorsed 
with a provision stating that it shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced 
in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days written notice has been 
provided to the City.  

 

F. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements. Prior to commencing the Services under 
this Agreement, Consultant shall submit to the City documentation evidencing the 
required insurance signed by the insurance agent and the companies named. This 
documentation shall be on forms which are acceptable to the City and shall include 
all required endorsements and verify that coverage is actually in effect.  This 
Agreement shall not be effective until the required insurance forms and 
endorsements are submitted to and approved by the City.  Failure to provide these 

























5 
 

Á Establish language in the ballot measure which will capture the taxation of 

cannabis to provide the city flexibility to adapt to various economic conditions in 

the cannabis industry; and 

Á Create and design a ballot measure to tax the various cannabis licensed activities 

which are permitted in the city. 

 

Objective 7: Regulatory Compliance Reviews and Financial Audits 

Objective 7:1 Conduct Compliance Audit 

HdL will conduct three (3) compliance inspections annually to ensure that each cannabis 

business will comply with the following: 

Á Proper Inventory Management of product 

Á Correct use of RFID tags for any products on the premises 

Á Occupational badge requirements 

Á Business records retention 

Á Tax information records 

Á Lock standards and protocols 

Á Alarm system maintenance and safety standards 

Á Breach of limited access areas 

Á Video surveillance 

Á Camera map, 

Á Video footage retention requirements 

Á Camera location and maintenance of surveillance equipment 

Á Transportation Manifest 

Á Retail Marijuana Production Management 

Á Waste Disposal 

Á Marijuana Infused products reasonable measures and precautions 

Á Ensure packaging and labeling requirements meet State requirements 

Á Other information as deemed necessary to ensure compliance with State and local 

law 

 

Objective 7:2 Financial Audit 

HdL will conduct two financial audits in the first year of a commercial cannabis business 

start-up with the first audit at the close as possible to the six month of operations and then 

again at the one year mark. In subsequent years, one financial audit which will be 

conducted in month twelve (12) and/or done annually when not in conflict with the 

compliance reviews. The first phase of the financial audit will be a desk audit in which 

the community benefit fee or tax returns and external reports are analyzed to verify the 

gross receipts reported which shall be subject to a Community Benefit fee or Commercial 

Cannabis Tax were applicable. 

 

The second phase is a field audit where point of sale systems, accounting software and 

inventory reports are sampled to verify the information contained in the external reports. 

Included in Phase II will be a field audit which will include a detailed check list of each 

of the key areas noted below which is deemed essential to conducting a thorough 

financial audit. HdL will also be conducting a financial and compliance forensic audit of 




	00A 180124 Agenda
	02A 2017 Audit Report
	1 Colfax agenda
	2 City of Colfax June 30 2017 AFS
	3 City of Colfax June 30 2017 SAS 114 Letter
	4 City of Colfax June 30 2017 Mgmt Letter
	5 City of Colfax June 30 2017 App Limit Letter

	03A 180110 Minutes
	03B Cash Summary December
	2018-05 Staff Report Cash Summary Dec 2017
	Cash Summary Data - December 2017

	03C Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Report QE 12.31.17
	Quarterly Investment Data

	03D Sales Tax and Use
	2018-01-24 Staff Report - Sales Tax Analysis
	Sales Use Tax Data

	03E 180124 SR Every 15 Minutes Donation
	03F CEQA Contract RCH for Hotel
	SR Neg Dec contract RCH Group
	Resolution 05-2018 CEQA with The RCH Group
	180124 The RCH Group for S. Auburn-Whitcomb Hotel CEQA
	RCH Group Colfax Hotel Proposal 1_2_2018 (2)

	06A HdL Cannabis Management
	180124 SR HdL Contract Cannabis Regulations
	Resolution 06-2018 HdL Cannabis Management
	HdL Proposal
	HdL Commercial Cannabis Management Agreement 1.25.2018
	HdL Commercial Cannabis Scope EXHIBIT A




